
 

PARK BOARD AGENDA 
 

1 

 

       MEETING SCHEDULE 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023, at 5:00 pm 

Council Chambers 

229 S. 2nd Street, Elkhart, IN  46516 
 

CALL TO ORDER            

1. ROLL CALL 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 February 21, 2023 

 

4. APPROVAL OF FINANCIALS 

 Claims - $48,018.33 

 Donations – $0 

 Grants - $0 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS MATTERS 

a. Daughters of the American Revolution Memorial Tree 

b. Ideal Beach Improvement and Aceess Agreement 

c. Memorandum of Understanding with Urban Streetware LLC 

d. Memorandum of Understanding with Alexandra Hibshman 

e. Memorandum of Understanding with Elkhart Dahlia Society 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

a. None 

 

7. USE AND EVENT PERMIT   

a. Community Easter Egg Hunt –April 1, 2023 – Walker Park 

b. Truma Spring Clean-Up & Picnic – April 22, 2023 – Island Park 

c. Peace Officers Memorial Service – May 17, 2023 – Kardzhali Park 

d. Compassion Walk – May 20, 2023 – Island Park 

e. Stemm-Lawson-Peterson Memorial Walk – May 20, 2023 – Walker Park 

f. Flags from the Heart – May 26-29, 2023 – Lundquist-Bicentennial Park 

g. Elkhart Juneteenth Celebration – June 19, 2023 – Roosevelt Park 

h. Peace Run – May 20, 2023 – Roosevelt Park 

i. Elkhart Farmers Market – May 6 – October 14, 2023 – Kardzhali Park 

 

8. DEPARTMENT REPORT 

 

9. CORRESPONDENCE 

a. None 

10. PUBLIC INPUT/PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR 

 

ADJOURNMENT   

NEXT REGULAR PARK BOARD MEETING APRIL 18, 2023, COUNCIL CHAMBERS. 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 

     Park Board Minutes 
 

1 
 

 

 

 

Call to Order at 5:00 PM. 

1. Roll Call- Quorum Present 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Sarah Santerre 
President 
 

Nekeisha Alayna Alexis 
Vice President 
 

Mark Datema 
Secretary 

Christopher Baiker 
Treasurer 

   
 

 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion to Approve Agenda 
Motion: MD  
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
 

3. Election of Park Board Officers 
a. Mrs. Santerre asks what needs to be done 
b. Mr. Datema states that all but the treasurer has been voted on 
c. Mrs. Santerre nominates Mr. Baiker for Treasurer 

i. Mr.Baiker is elected by unanimous voice vote 
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
 
December 20, 2022 
Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
 

 
 
5. Approval of Financials 

 
 
 
 

Motion to discuss, approve and place on file 
Motion: NAA 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
 
Mr. Datema asks about the $44,150.00 spent on tables and trash cans 
Ms. Bowers states that this was last year’s money that was rolled into a PO until the tables and chairs 
arrived. 

DATE: February 21, 2023 

TIME: 5:00 PM 

LOCATION: 

City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 
Annex Conference Room 
201 S. 2nd Street, Elkhart, IN 46516 

Claims: $95,643.56 
 

 

Donations: $0 
Grants: $0 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 

     Park Board Minutes 
 

2 
 

Ms. Alexis asks about the strategic planning session that was in the packet. 
Mr. Czarnecki explains that the department worked with Trudy Menke to help develop the framework of 
what will be tackled in 2023-2024. 
 

6. New Business 
a. 2023 Fee Schedule Amendments 

Mrs. Bowers states that changes were made to the Farmer’s Market and Dahlia Society 
fees. 
Ms. Gordon explains that the Farmer’s Market season was extended, and they were 
changing the cost to match the season.  
Motion: NAA 
Second: MD 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

b. Elkhart Framers Market Billboard Contract 
Ms. Gordon states that the vendors ask what kind of advertising the department does and do 
not think it is enough. She states the department does mostly social media advertising and is 
trying to do more to promote the Farmer’s Market. 
Ms. Santerre asks where the billboard will be. 
Ms. Gordon answers that it will be behind Hacienda. 
Ms. Alexis asks if there are any other strategies for promoting it. 
Ms. Gordon answers that they may do segments on Hometown Living and are looking at 
advertising costs on television. She adds that they are still posting on social media and 
asking the vendors to help share the posts. 
Motion: MD 
Second: NAA 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 

 
7. Old Business 

a. None 
 

8. Use and Event Permit 
a. EPD 5K-9 Run – March 13, 2023 – American Park & River Walk 

Cpl. Davies from the K-9 unit states that this is the 3rd year they have done this. They are 
hoping for 150-200 participants this year. It is a family and pet-friendly event, and they have 
a K-9 demonstration after the race before the awards ceremony. The cost is $25.00 and 
includes a shirt, or they can opt out of it and pay a $10.00 registration fee. 
Mr. Datema asks where the registration fees go.  
Mr. Davies states this is a fundraiser, and the registration fees are used for supplies for the 
year. The shirts cost $15.00 a piece, which is what they charge, so they only keep the $10.00 
registration fee. 
Ms. Alexis asks if the dogs ever get into it. 
Cpl. Davies says they have never had any issues and do not anticipate any problems. 
Mr. Baiker asks if the dogs run the race with the runners. 
Mr. Davis states that they do and that they can also choose to walk with their dogs. 
Motion: MD 
Second: CB 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
 

9. Department Report 
Mr. Czarnecki reports that the Department finished strategic planning with Trudy and is now on to phase 
2, leading to the guide map for the next year and a half. New registration software through CivicRec is 
moving forward. The Department is getting quotes for Riverview softball signage. After-school 



        City of Elkhart Parks & Recreation 

     Park Board Minutes 
 

3 
 

programming is increasing each week. Nibco did $20,000 in ticket sales but had some trouble with the 
generator and would probably not be open for the weekend.  
Ms. Gordon reports that Frosty was the previous weekend and had 175 runners. The 3rd annual Spring 
Pop-Up is coming up, and vendors are full. She stated that they hired a Farmer’s Market manager. They 
are starting to put together sponsorships and donations for the events. Mr. Datema asked if they had 
enough volunteers. Ms. Gordon responds that they had some but did not get the ideal amount. 
Ms. Alexis asks if the new system will make tracking volunteers and their time easier. Ms. Gordon 
responds that yes, it will.  
Ms. Ixmatlahua reports that participation at Roosevelt is increasing. They did the Lunar New Year 
celebration with the movie Raya and the last dragon. Basketball registrations are going well. She also 
reported on all of the programs coming up. 
Mr. McCray provides the ranger report for the previous month and introduces the new park ranger, Nhim 
Danh. 

 

10. Public Input/Privilege of the Floor 
Mrs. Santerre opens the privilege of the floor. 

  
Mrs. Santerre closes the privilege of the floor. 
 

11. Approval for Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn 
Motion: MD 
Second: CB 
Motion passes with unanimous voice vote 
Adjourn 5:42 pm 

 
PARKS & RECREATION STAFF MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE 

Jamison Czarnecki, Superintendent  
Luisa Ixmatlahua-Garay, Program Coordinator 
Nick Cron, Operations Manager 
Stan McCray, Lead Park Ranger 
 

Sommer Bowers, Office Manager/Recording Secretary 
Maddy Gordon, Volunteer Coordinator 
Nhim Danh, Park Ranger 

 
 
ADDITIONAL CITY EMPLOYEES AND GUESTS IN ATTENDANCE 

Mr. Jon Balog, IT Department 
 

Ms. Rose Rivera, Legal Department 
 

Cpl. Jared Davies, K-9 Unit 
 

 
 
Minutes Certification: 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

_______________________________________________  ___________________________________________ 

Recording Secretary   Sommer Bowers   Date 
 

_______________________________________________  ____________________________________________ 

Park Board President   Sarah Santerre    Date 
 

_______________________________________________  _____________________________________________ 

Park Board Secretary  Mark Datema    Date 

















IDEAL BEACH IMPROVEMENT AND ACCESS AGREEMENT 

This Improvement and Access Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made between the City of 

Elkhart, a legal Indiana municipality (the “City”) through its Board of Parks and Recreation 

(Park Board), Nancy Smith (Donor), and Cross Excavating, an Indiana Domestic For-Profit 

Corporation (Contractor), on this____ day of March, 2023. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Donor desires to fund certain improvements for Ideal Beach, a park and beach 

maintained by City’s Park Board, and City’s Park Board is willing to grant access to Contractor 

to make such improvements, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Donor agrees to fund the following improvements to Ideal Beach: 

a. Removal of kiddy pool 

b. Filling in the ground where the kiddy pool was located with soil and grass seed or 

sod 

2. The work will be completed by Donor’s chosen contractor, Cross Excavating, which donor 

will contract with and pay directly at no cost to the City. 

3. City will work with Donor to provide Donor with appropriate acknowledgment of Donor’s 

donation for tax purposes.  

4. City will permit Contractor and third-parties retained by Contractor to enter and access Ideal 

Beach, on the grounds, property, and facilities of 52256 Ideal Beach Rd, Elkhart, IN 46514. City 

will provide to Contractor a gate key for ease of access and Contractor will notify City of its 

arrival/departure from City property. Contractor agrees to provide City 24 hours’ notice of 

entrance to the property. 

5.  Contractor shall communicate a plan and timeline for the work. 

7. Contractor is solely responsible for coordinating the removal of the kiddy pool and filling in 

the area with soil and grass seed/sod. 

 8. Prior to obtaining a key, contractor will provide the City with a Certificate of insurance, 

naming the City of Elkhart, Indiana 229 S. Second Street, Elkhart, Indiana 46516 as an 

additional insured in the amount of 1 million per claim and 3 million aggregate for general 

liability, including personal injury, and for property insurance. Contractor will also provide City 

with proof of Workers Compensation insurance.  



9. City shall not be liable to Contractor or third parties retained by contractor, their agents, 

servants, employees, contractors, customers or invitees for any damage to person or property 

caused by any act, omission, or neglect, of City. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and 

hold harmless City of, from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, claims, liens, 

costs and expenses (including but not limited to court costs, reasonable attorney’s fees and 

litigation expenses) in connection with injury to or death of any person or damage to or theft, 

loss or loss of the use of any property occurring in or about the premises arising from 

Contractor’s or its agent’s access to the property, or the conduct of their activities in or about the 

premises, or from any act or omission or willful misconduct of contractor or its persons, agents, 

employees, contractors, assigns, guests, or invitees arising out of contractor’s access to 52256 

Ideal Beach Rd, Elkhart, Indiana. 

10. Governing Law—It is the intention of Parties to this Agreement all suits and special 

proceedings under this Agreement, be construed in accordance with and governed, to the 

exclusion of the law of any other forum, by the laws of the State of Indiana, without regard to the 

jurisdiction in which any action or special proceeding may be instituted. 

11. Severability— Should there be a conflict between any provision of this Agreement and 

applicable laws of the State of Indiana said laws will prevail and such provisions of the 

Agreement will be amended or deleted as necessary in order to comply with said laws. 

12. Modification—This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified only by the 

mutual agreement of Parties. No supplement, amendment or modification of this Agreement 

shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by all parties. 

13. Notices—All notices or demands required or desired to be given by either party to the other 

with respect to this Agreement will be in writing, will be addressed as provided below, and will 

be:   

a. The City of Elkhart, Indiana, c/o John Espar, Corporate Counsel, 229 S. 

Second St. Elkhart, IN 46516.  

b. Cross Excavating, Russel S. Cross Jr, 52071 M 51 N, Dowagiac, MI 49047 

c. Nancy Smith, 70397 Hilltop Union MI, 49130 

 

14. Delivered personally, in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and 

served upon receipt or refusal to accept such notice; or  

 

15. Sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, prepaid or billed to sender, 

in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and served upon receipt or 

refusal to accept receipt.  Either party may change its address or add additional parties 

for receipt of notices by giving notice of such change to the other party in accordance 

with the provisions of this Section. 

 

16. Any party to this agreement may terminate the agreement at any time. 



 

 

DONOR    

SIGNATURE: _____________________________   

      

Date:  _______________________        _____________________________ 

          (Printed Name, Title)     

 

CONTRACTOR    

SIGNATURE: _____________________________   

      

Date:  _______________________        _____________________________ 

          (Printed Name, Title)     

   

 

CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA 

By its BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 

Date: _____________________ __________________________________ 

 (Printed Name, Title) 

 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

 

 This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“Agreement”) is made as of the ____ day of 

______, 2023, by and between the CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA (“City”) on behalf of the Elkhart 

Parks and Urban Streetwear LLC. 

RECITALS 

 Elkhart Parks and Recreation (“Parks”) is a department of City organized under the 

provisions of §36-10-3-1 et. seq. of the Indiana Code. 

Urban Streetwear LLC (US); Chris Beckham is a local skateboard business owner that 

promotes the tools and materials from his Urban Streetwear Store to provide the best experience 

skateboarding. Chris has been leading the “Skateboarding Lessons” since 2020.   

Parks and US desire to offer a Spring Intro to Skateboarding program at the Pierre Moran 

Skate Park from April 30 to May 21.  

Parks and US believe it is in the best interest of the parties to this agreement for them to 

agree to establish and/or clarify their respective rights and responsibilities concerning the 

operation and funding for this program. 

In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements herein 

contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:  

1. US will take lead of the program the “Intro to Skateboarding” program Sundays, 

April 30 to May 21. The program will take place at Parks Pierre Moran Skate Park. 

2. The course will run from 12:00 PM -2:00 PM.   

3. The program will cost $20.00 per participant. 

4. No prior registration will be needed to attend. 

5. Parks will receive 75% of the program's fee. 

6. Urban Street Wear will keep 25% of the program fee. 

7. Participants will be responsible for bringing their own equipment and providing their 

transportation. 



8. “Intro to Skateboarding” classes are limited to 25 participants to avoid overcrowding. 

9. Instructors will provide their own music and technology needed for the program. 

10. US agrees to provide Parks with a certificate of insurance demonstrating it has 

liability insurance in the amount of one million dollars in addition to an umbrella 

policy of one million dollars. 

11. US agrees that the Parks shall be added as an additional insured to its policy. 

12. Bathroom facilities at the park will be provided. 

13. Governing Law—It is the intention of Parties to this Agreement all suits and special 

proceedings under this Agreement, be construed in accordance with and governed, to 

the exclusion of the law of any other forum, by the laws of the State of Indiana, 

without regard to the jurisdiction in which any action or special proceeding may be 

instituted. 

14. Severability— Should there be a conflict between any provision of this Agreement 

and applicable laws of the State of Indiana said laws will prevail and such provisions 

of the Agreement will be amended or deleted as necessary in order to comply with 

said laws. 

15. Modification—This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified only by 

the mutual agreement of Parties. No supplement, amendment or modification of this 

Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by all parties. 

16. Notices—All notices or demands required or desired to be given by either party to the 

other with respect to this Agreement will be in writing, will be addressed as provided 

below, and will be:   

The City of Elkhart, Indiana, c/o John Espar, Corporate Counsel, 229 S. Second St. 

Elkhart, IN 46516.  

Chris Beckman 

17. Delivered personally, in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and 

served upon receipt or refusal to accept such notice; or  

18. Sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, prepaid or billed to sender, 

in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and served upon receipt or 

refusal to accept receipt.  Either party may change its address or add additional parties 



for receipt of notices by giving notice of such change to the other party in accordance 

with the provisions of this Section. 

19. Entire Agreement—This Agreement constitutes the final agreement between US and 

Parks related to the operation of the “Intro to Skateboarding” classes. No 

representation, promise or inducement has been made by either party that is not 

embodied in this Agreement, and neither party shall be bound by or liable for any 

alleged representation, promise or inducement not specifically set forth herein. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each executed this Memorandum of 

Understanding, on the date and year first written above. 

 

____________________________  

 

 

 

By: _____________________________    

      

Date:  _______________________        _____________________________ 

          (Printed Name, Title)     

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA 

By its BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 

Date: _____________________ __________________________________ 

 (Printed Name, Title) 

 

 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

 

 This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“Agreement”) is made as of the ____ day of 

_______, 2023 by and between the CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA (“City”) on behalf of the Elkhart 

Parks and Recreation Department and Alexandra Hibshman. 

RECITALS 

 Elkhart Parks and Recreation (“Parks”) is a department of City organized under the 

provisions of §36-10-3-1 et. seq. of the Indiana Code. 

Alexandra Hibshman (A&H) is a local professional Water Color Artist dedicated to 

teaching watercolor art in the community.  

City and A&H desires to offer introductory watercolor workshops provide instruction and 

inspiration for those who want to unleash their inner artist with the beautiful medium of 

watercolor. 

City and A&H believe it is in best interest of the parties to this agreement for them to 

agree to establish and/or clarify their respective rights and responsibilities concerning the 

operation and funding for this program. 

In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements herein 

contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:  

1. A&H will lead three programs: “Intro to Watercolor,” “Watercolor Floral Workshop 

Series,” and “Fun with Watercolors for Kids.”  

2. The program Intro to Watercolor will take place at McNaughton Pavilion. On March 

30 and April 27. The course will run from 6:00 PM-8:00 PM. Participants must be 16 

years or older. The program will cost $35 per participant per class.  

3. The program Intro to “Watercolor Floral Workshop Series” will take place at 

McNaughton Pavilion. On May 11, 18, 25. The course will run from 6:00 PM -

8:00PM. Participants must be 16 years or older. The program series will cost $80 per 

participant total.  



4. The program “Fun with Water Colors for Kids” will take place at Studebaker. On 

March 23. Participants must be 5-7 years old. The course will run from 6:00 PM -

7:15 PM. The program will cost $25 per participant.  

5. The program “Fun with Water Colors for Kids” will take place at Studebaker. On 

April 20. Participants must be 8-11 years old. The course will run from 6:00 PM -

7:15 PM. The program will cost $25 per participant.  

6. The program “Fun with Water Colors for Kids” will take place at Studebaker. On 

May 4. Participants must be 12-15 years old. The course will run from 6:00 PM -7:15 

PM. The program will cost $25 per participant.  

7. A&H will receive 80% of the program fees 

8. Parks will keep 20% of the program fees 

9. Parks will create online registration form and collect those fees. 

10. A&H will conduct the entirety of the program. 

11. Governing Law—It is the intention of Parties to this Agreement all suits and special 

proceedings under this Agreement, be construed in accordance with and governed, to 

the exclusion of the law of any other forum, by the laws of the State of Indiana, 

without regard to the jurisdiction in which any action or special proceeding may be 

instituted. 

12. Severability— Should there be a conflict between any provision of this Agreement 

and applicable laws of the State of Indiana said laws will prevail and such provisions 

of the Agreement will be amended or deleted as necessary in order to comply with 

said laws. 

13. Modification—This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified only by 

the mutual agreement of Parties. No supplement, amendment or modification of this 

Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by all parties. 

14. Notices—All notices or demands required or desired to be given by either party to the 

other with respect to this Agreement will be in writing, will be addressed as provided 

below, and will be:  The City of Elkhart, Indiana, c/o John Espar, Corporate Counsel, 

229 S. Second St. Elkhart, IN 46516. 

_____________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________ 



15. Delivered personally, in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and 

served upon receipt or refusal to accept such notice; or  

16. Sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, prepaid or billed to sender, 

in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and served upon receipt or 

refusal to accept receipt.  Either party may change its address or add additional parties 

for receipt of notices by giving notice of such change to the other party in accordance 

with the provisions of this Section. 

17. Entire Agreement—This Agreement constitutes the final agreement between 

Alexandra Hibshman and City related to the operation of “Intro to Water Color,” 

“Intro to Water Color Florals Workshop Series”, and “Fun with Watercolors for 

Kids.” No representation, promise or inducement has been made by either party that 

is not embodied in this Agreement, and neither party shall be bound by or liable for 

any alleged representation, promise or inducement not specifically set forth herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each executed this Memorandum of 

Understanding, on the date and year first written above. 

 

____________________________  

 

 

 

By: _____________________________    

      

Date:  _______________________        _____________________________ 

          (Printed Name, Title)     

 

 

 

    

 

 

CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA 

By its BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 

Date: _____________________ __________________________________ 

 (Printed Name, Title) 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

 

 This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“Agreement”) is made as of the ___ day of 

____, 2022, by and between the CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA (“City”) on behalf of the Elkhart 

Parks and Recreation Department and Elkhart Dahlia Society. 

RECITALS 

 Elkhart Parks and Recreation (“Parks”) is a department of City organized under the 

provisions of §36-10-3-1 et. seq. of the Indiana Code. 

Elkhart Dahlia Society; Rusty Richie: Teaches others about growing and exhibiting dahlias; to 

share our collective knowledge; and to continue the traditions of those dahlia growers who came 

before us.  

 

 

City and Elkhart Dahlia Society; Rusty Ritchie (EDS) desire to offer one 

Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (“CPR”) certification class, participate in two “Famers Markets” 

dates, and Instruct three “Beginning Line Dancing Class” in exchange for using High Dive 

Pavilion for three half sessions. The City and EDS believe it is in the best interest of the parties 

to agree to establish and/or clarify their respective rights and responsibilities concerning the 

operation and funding for this program. 

In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements herein 

contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:  

1. EDS will use the High Dive Pavilion for half day on February 4, May 6, and June 3. 

2. EDS will lead the “CPR” program on April 8. The program will take place at 

Willowdale Pavilion. The course will run from 1:00 PM – 3:00 PM. The cost per 

certification certificate is $15. Max of 16 paying participants. The cost of participants 

for no certification is free. Max of 5 non-paying participants.   

3. Parks will keep 100% of the “CPR” Program fees. 

4. EDS will lead the “Beginning Line Dance Class” on March 16, 23, and 30. The 

program will take place at High Dive Pavilion. The course will run from 6:00 PM-

8:00 PM. The cost per person per class is $5.00.  



5. Parks will keep 100% of the program fees.  

6. EDS will do the “Farmers Market” on May 13 and 20. 

7. Governing Law—It is the intention of Parties to this Agreement all suits and special 

proceedings under this Agreement be construed in accordance with and governed, to 

the exclusion of the law of any other forum, by the laws of the State of Indiana, 

without regard to the jurisdiction in which any action or special proceeding may be 

instituted. 

8. Severability— Should there be a conflict between any provision of this Agreement 

and applicable laws of the State of Indiana, said laws will prevail, and such provisions 

of the Agreement will be amended or deleted as necessary in order to comply with 

said laws. 

9. Modification—This Agreement may be supplemented, amended, or modified only by 

the mutual agreement of Parties. No supplement, amendment or modification of this 

Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by all parties. 

10. Notices—All notices or demands required or desired to be given by either party to the 

other with respect to this Agreement will be in writing, will be addressed as provided 

below, and will be:  The City of Elkhart, Indiana, c/o John Espar, Corporate Counsel, 

229 S. Second St. Elkhart, IN 46516. 

_____________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________ 

11. Delivered personally, in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and 

served upon receipt or refusal to accept such notice; or  

12. Sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, prepaid or billed to sender, 

in which case the notice or demand will be deemed given and served upon receipt or 

refusal to accept receipt.  Either party may change its address or add additional parties 

for receipt of notices by giving notice of such change to the other party in accordance 

with the provisions of this Section. 

13. Entire Agreement—This Agreement constitutes the final agreement between Dahlia 

Society and City related to the operation of “CPR,” Beginning Line Dance Class. No 

representation, promise or inducement has been made by either party that is not 



embodied in this Agreement, and neither party shall be bound by or liable for any 

alleged representation, promise or inducement not specifically set forth herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each executed this Memorandum of 

Understanding, on the date and year first written above. 

 

____________________________  

 

 

 

By: _____________________________    

      

Date:  _______________________        _____________________________ 

          (Printed Name, Title)     

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 

CITY OF ELKHART, INDIANA 

By its BOARD OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 

Date: _____________________ __________________________________ 

 (Printed Name, Title) 

 

 



kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight















kobiejen
Highlight





kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight



















kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight



















kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight















kobiejen
Highlight





kobiejen
Highlight















kobiejen
Highlight













kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight





















kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight

kobiejen
Highlight























kobiejen
Highlight



















kobiejen
Highlight



















The Honorable 
Rod Roberson 
Mayor  
 

Jamison Czarnecki 
Parks Superintendent 

 

 

Parks & Recreation 

1320 Benham Ave. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

574.295.7275 

Fax:  574.522-7808 
 

 
MEMO 
 
To: Board of Elkhart Parks and Recreation 
 
From: Jamison Czarnecki, Superintendent 
 
Date: 3-21-2023 
 
Re: Parks Department Report 
 

 
Superintendent’s Update (Jamison Czarnecki) 

 We have finished our meetings for the 2023-2024 Strategic Priorities and Objectives Plan that will be our guiding 
document to work through for the next 2 years. When in a report form, the board will receive a copy.  

 The Annual Report and the Spring Activities Guide are now complete and available for viewing on our website.  

 Some highlighted numbers from the annual report: 
o Over $300,000 in combined revenue from rentals, facilities, and programming. 
o Over 10,000 people counted in the parks and programs (not including events attendance and facility 

admissions. 
o Record attendance at events including 30,000 people at Rhapsody Arts and Music Fest alone. 
o New playgrounds, new trails, pavilion renovations, and more happened throughout our parks in 2022! 

 The Capital Improvement Plan received updates and we are meeting with Park Foundation members to identify 
external funding opportunities and collaboration. 

 Nicole Wright was promoted from Front Office Assistant to serve as our new full time accounting specialist. We 
are grateful to have her on the team and look forward to having her continue to offer her skillsets to the team. 

 NIBCO Ice and Water Park has closed after another successful season! In total, we received $7,050 in concession 
sales and $53,428 in admission sales from December 1, 2022 to March 1, 2023. 

 Total revenue from pavilion rentals was $7,925 for January and $8,780 in February. 

 Recruitment and hiring has begun for seasonal workers, so please share out to your networks.  
 
Events Report (Sherry Krask) 

 The Elkhart Farmers Market has its first sponsor, Renewal by Andersen has committed to becoming a “friend of 
the market” for the season. Their commitment is $1,000.00. 

 The Parks Department has received a Rhapsody sponsorship from Brinkley RV for $25,000. 

 The Fall Fabulous Pop Up Market was held on Saturday, March 18 at McNaughton Pavilion.  

 The Parks Department is collaborating with The Elkhart Environmental Center to host the 3rd annual Easter egg 
hunt in the parks and at EEC. The eggs will be hidden throughout the month and hunting will begin on April 1st. 
When found, the eggs are returned to the Parks office or EEC, they will receive a prize bag. 

 

Programming and Recreation Report (Luisa Ixmatlahua) 

 Roosevelt Center Programs 4:30-5:30 pm – As of date, 106 participants  
 Monday, "Chess Club" open to our 2nd -8th graders – Currently 4 participants coming. 



The Honorable 
Rod Roberson 
Mayor  
 

Jamison Czarnecki 
Parks Superintendent 

 

 

Parks & Recreation 

1320 Benham Ave. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

574.295.7275 

Fax:  574.522-7808 
 

 Tuesday, "Sports Clinic" open to our 2nd-8th graders- 
20 participants currently coming. 

 Wednesday, "Picture Perfect" is open to all ages- 1 participant has shown for this program. 
 Thursday, March 16 we began our Basketball Workshops: "Shooting," "Ball Handling," and "Foot Work 

and Passing" for Middle School juniors.  
 Community Programs 

  "Line Dancing" on March 16, 23, and 30 from 6:00-8:00 pm will cost $5 and be open to all ages in the 
community. -  8 participants 

 "Basic Digital Photography Seminar" on March 21- May 9, from 5:00-8:00 pm $20.00 per participant. – 
5participants 

 "Intro to Water Color" on March 30 from 6:00 – 8:00 pm for adults; $35.00 per participant. – 1 
participant  

 "Fun with Water Color for Kids" on March 23 from 6:00 pm- 7:15 pm for ages 5-7 years old; the cost is 
$25.00 per participant.- 5 participants 

 
Ranger Report (Ranger Stan McCray) 

February 1-28, 2023  

 

Citations 

 None written. 

Various Park Activities and number of people participating. 

 Basketball (12), Biking (24), Fishing (16), Ice Skating (97), Parking/Sitting (389), Playground (160),  Soccer (22), 
Skateboarding (15), Tennis (2), Walking/jogging (295), and Walking Dog (82).   Grand Total Patrons – 1,114 

Events 

 Feb. 11, 2022- 14th Annual Frosty 5K/5M – There were 177 participants, walking/running, plus approximately 8 

dogs. Rangers assisted with parking, picking up signage, and assisting where needed.  

Damage  

 Feb. 15, 2023 – While on patrol, Ranger Keen discovered graffiti painted on the McNaughton Park Tennis Court 

backstop.  Ranger Keen reported the graffiti on Myelkhart311. 

Other  

 Feb. 8, 2023 – A call was received regarding a white duck tangled in fishing line at High Dive Park. Ranger 

McCray went to High Dive Park and found the duck in the pond near the rear of Kroger’s Grocery Store.  

They monitored the duck for about 40 minutes, but it stayed in the water.  The duck swam about without 

any obvious issues, however; periodic checks were done to see if there were any other issues.  

 



The Honorable 
Rod Roberson 
Mayor  
 

Jamison Czarnecki 
Parks Superintendent 

 

 

Parks & Recreation 

1320 Benham Ave. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

574.295.7275 

Fax:  574.522-7808 
 

 Feb. 9, 2023 – Owl Boxes were placed at each of the following parks: 

American Park, Hayden Park, River Greenway, Pinewood Park and Studebaker Park by the Buildings and Grounds 

Dept. 

 

 Feb. 10, 2023 – While patrolling, Ranger Keen responded to an issue at High Dive Park where an adult male had 

been threatened by a group of kids. The male said that the kids told him, if he didn’t give them money, they 

would beat him up.  Ranger Keen called the police and after talking with all parties, there were no charges filed. 

 

 Feb. 15, 2023 - While on patrol – Ranger McCray found miscellaneous trash at the far west end of Langle Park.  

Ranger McCray picked up the trash, which included women’s clothing, shoes, food wrappers, and several 

receipts from various grocery stores.  The trash was removed and properly disposed into a trash dumpster. 

 

 Feb. 21, 2022 – A new Part-time Park Ranger was hired which brings our numbers of part-time rangers to four.  

His name is Dhim Danh. 

## End of Report ## 


	03-21-23 PARK BOARD AGENDA.pdf
	2.21.23 Park Board Minutes
	03.21.23 PARKS
	IDEAL BEACH IMPROVEMENT AND ACCESS TRANSFER AGREEMENT
	Skateboard MOU 1.27.23
	MOU Watercolors Classes
	Dahlia Society MOU
	Community Easter Egg Hunt
	Truma Clean Up
	Peace Officers Memorial
	Compassion Walk
	SLP Memorial Walk
	Flags from the Heart 23 Permit.pdf
	Juneteenth
	Peace Run
	Farmers Market
	Parks Board Report 3-21-2023

